
1 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

Mary Bravo 
Councilmember 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE GUADALUPE TOWN COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, MARCH 26, 2024 
5:30 P.M. 

GUADALUPE TOWN HALL 
9241 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI, COUNCIL CHAMBERS  

GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Guadalupe Town Council 
and to the public that the Guadalupe Town Council will hold a meeting, open to the public, on Tuesday, 
March 26, 2024, at 5:30 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council 
Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona. Meetings are streamed live on the Town of Guadalupe Facebook page 
at https://www.facebook.com/guadalupeaz.org. 

AGENDA 
A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None.

E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  An opportunity is provided to the public to address the Council on items
that are not on the agenda. A total of 3 minutes will be provided for the Call to the Audience agenda
item unless the Council requests an exception to this limit. Please note that those wishing to comment
on agenda items posted for action will be provided the opportunity at the time the item is heard.

F. MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATION:
1. Week of Young Child Proclamation

G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS:

1. SUMMER YOUTH LEADERSHIP PROGRAM: Council will receive a presentation from
Community Action Program (CAP) staff regarding a proposed summer Youth Leadership Program.  The
proposed week long program, from June 3rd through June 7th, will offer  Guadalupe High school students
with the opportunity to learn how to address challenges in their community through advocacy training,
engaging with Town staff to learn the inner workings of municipal government, and learn from
community experts to develop a presentation on their own public policy topics of interest.  Town of
Guadalupe high school age students are eligible for the program and is limited to twelve participants.
Applications will be available from April 1st through April 30th.   The approximate cost is $1500 and is
available through the CAP budget.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.

2. 2024 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT PROGRAM:  Council will receive recommendations for
sixteen 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant submittals for the 2024 grant cycle from Town Manager /
Clerk.  The sixteen recommended grant submittals to five entities total $1,186,000 for the 2024 grant
cycle and would provide funding for needed repairs, equipment, and services.  The resolutions to the
individual entities follow as agenda items 3 through 7.  Council may provide direction to the Town
Manager / Clerk.



2 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

Mary Bravo 
Councilmember 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 

3. AK-CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO.
R2024.06): Council will consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.06 authorizing the submittal of
an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $210,000 from the Ak-Chin Indian
Community to fund  a shade structure for fire department vehicles,  a command/community service
vehicle for the Guadalupe fire department, and cultural event programming; and, direct the Mayor, or
designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application.  Council may provide
direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.

4. FORT MCDOWELL YAVAPAI NATION 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO.
R2024.07):  Council will consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.07 authorizing the submittal of
an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $187,000 from the Fort McDowell Yavapai
Nation to fund firefighter replacement turnout gear, public works maintenance yard
warehouse/restroom/tool shed renovation, and public works dump trucks; and, direct the Mayor, or
designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. Council may provide
direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.

5. GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO.
R2024.08):  Council will consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.08 authorizing the submittal of
an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $207,000 from the Gila River Indian
Community to fund a community action program workforce development program, public works
maintenance yard vehicle shade structure, and a senior center entryway/patio remodel; and, direct
the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. Council
may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.

6. PASCUA YAQUI TRIBE 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. R2024.09):
Council will consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.09 authorizing the submittal of an application
for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $424,000 from the Pascua Yaqui Tribe to fund the
renovation of the Guadalupe fire station truck bay flooring, doors, and roof; renovation of Biehn
park restrooms, ballpark, and playground; installation of flagpoles, renovation of a ramada, and
replacement of gates at the Guadalupe cemetery; and, public safety services for cultural and
community events; and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance
of this grant application. Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.

7. TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO.
R2024.10):  Council will consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.10 authorizing the submittal of
an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $158,000 from the Tohono O’odham Nation
to fund the purchase of an event utility vehicle, replacement kitchen equipment and appliances for
the Senior Center and Community Action Program family utility assistance; and, direct the Mayor,
or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. council may
provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.

8. TRIBAL REVENUE SHARING SUPPORT LETTER REQUEST:  Council will consider and may
take action to approve a support letter for inclusion with Bella Estrella’s revenue sharing application to
the Gila River Indian Community.  Bella Estrella’s is requesting $50,000 for supplies to teach
transferable life skills to adolescents and their caregivers.  Council may provide direction to the Town
Manager / Clerk.

H. TOWN MANAGER/CLERK’S COMMENTS

I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

J. ADJOURNMENT



 

March 22, 2024 

 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk  

RE:  March 26, 2024, Town Council Regular Meeting Information Report 

 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide brief information regarding each agenda item.   

Agenda Items: 

F1. WEEK OF THE YOUNG CHILD PROCLAMATION (PAGE 6) 

 

G1.  SUMMER YOUTH LEADERSHIP PROGRAM (PAGES 7 – 10):  Council will receive a presentation from 
Community Action Program (CAP) staff regarding a proposed summer Youth Leadership Program.  The proposed 
weeklong program, from June 3 through June 7, will offer Guadalupe High school students with the opportunity to learn 
how to address challenges in their community through advocacy training, engaging with Town staff to learn the inner 
workings of municipal government, and learn from community experts to develop a presentation on their own public 
policy topics of interest. Town of Guadalupe high school age students are eligible for the program, is limited to 12 
participants.  Applications will be available from April 1 through April 30.   The estimated cost to operate this program 
is $1500 and is available through the CAP budget. Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. 

 

G2.  2024 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT PROGRAM (PAGES 11 – 23):  Council will receive 
recommendations for sixteen 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant submittals for the 2024 grant cycle from Town 
Manager / Clerk.  The 16 sixteen recommended grant submittals to five entities total $1,186,000 for the 2024 grant 
cycle address service needs, replacing aging and worn equipment, and renovating and repairing deteriorating Town 
facilities in 7 service areas:  

 

The recommended resolution and a 6-year history of revenue sharing grants are provided on the attached 
PowerPoint. The individual recommended grant submittals are summarized in the following table: 

Department Amount % 
Fire Department $372,000 31.4%
Parks/Cemetery $250,000 21.1%
Public Works $200,000 16.9%
Senior Center $150,000 12.6%
CAP $105,000 8.9%
Public Safety $79,000 6.7%
Events $30,000 2.5%

total $1,186,000 100.0%

3



G3. AK-CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY GAMING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. R2024.06) (PAGE 19): Council will 
consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.06 authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue 
sharing (gaming) grant of $210,000 from the Ak-Chin Indian Community to fund  a shade structure for fire department 
vehicles,  a command/community service vehicle for the Guadalupe fire department, and cultural event programming; 
and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application 

2024 Grant Requests For Council 3_26_2024 

Ak-Chin 2024 Requests
Due: July 7

$85,000 FD FD Vehicle Shade Structure
$95,000 FD Command/Community Service Vehicle
$30,000 Events Cultural Event Programming

$210,000 total

Fort McDowell 2024 Requests
Due: May 1

$72,000 FD Firefighter Replacement Turnout Gear 
$45,000 PW Maintenance Yard Warehouse/Restroom/Tool Shed 
$70,000 PW 2- Dump trucks

$187,000 total

Gila River 2024 Requests
Due: April 1 

$85,000 PW Maintenance Yard Vehicle Shade Structure
$62,000 SC Entry Patio Remodel
$60,000 CAP Work Force Development - PT Position 2 yr

$207,000 total

Pascua Yaqui Tribe 2024 Requests 
Due: Sept. 30 / Feb. 28

$120,000 FD Fire Station Truck Bay Renovations
$225,000 Parks Biehn Park Renovations (Restrooms, Playground, Ball Field)

$54,000 PS Public Safety for Cultural Events
$25,000 Cemetery Flagpole Display & Ramada

$424,000 total

Tohono O'odham 2024 Requests 
Due: June 9

$25,000 PS Event Utility Vehicle
$88,000 SC Replacement Kitchen Equipment / Appliances
$45,000 CAP Family Utility Assistance

$158,000 total

$1,186,000 TOTAL 2024 Requests

4



G4. FORT MCDOWELL YAVAPAI NATION GAMING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. R2024.07) (PAGE 20):  
Council will consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.07 authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% 
revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $187,000 from the Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation to fund firefighter replacement 
turnout gear, public works maintenance yard warehouse/restroom/tool shed renovation, and public works dump 
trucks; and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. 

 

G5. GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY GAMING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. R2024.08) (PAGE 21):  Council 
will consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.08 authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue 
sharing (gaming) grant of $207,000 from the Gila River Indian Community to fund a community action program 
workforce development program, public works maintenance yard vehicle shade structure, and a senior center 
entryway/patio remodel; and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this 
grant application. 

 

G6. PASCUA YAQUI TRIBE GAMING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. R2024.09) (PAGE 22):  Council will 
consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.09 authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue 
sharing (gaming) grant of $424,000 from the Pascua Yaqui Tribe to fund the renovation of the Guadalupe fire 
station truck bay flooring, doors, and roof; renovation of Biehn park restrooms, ballpark, and playground; 
installation of flagpoles, renovation of a ramada, and replacement of gates at the Guadalupe cemetery; and, 
public safety services for cultural and community events: and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary 
documents in furtherance of this grant application.  

 

G7. TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION GAMING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. R2024.10) (PAGE 23):  Council will 
consider and may adopt Resolution No. R2024.10 authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue 
sharing (gaming) grant of $158,000 from the Tohono O’odham Nation to fund the purchase of an event utility 
vehicle, replacement kitchen equipment and appliances for the senior center and community action program 
family utility assistance; and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this 
grant application.  

 

G8. TRIBAL REVENUE SHARING SUPPORT LETTER REQUEST (PAGES 24 – 26):  Council will consider 
and may take action to approve a support letter for inclusion with Bella Estrella’s revenue sharing application to the 
Gila River Indian Community of $50,000.   

 
At the October 28, 2021, Regular Council Meeting, the Council approved a support letter request application process 
for non-profit organizations applying for Tribal revenue sharing (also referred to as gaming) grants.  The Town has 
received a request for a support letter from Bella Estrella to include with their grant application to the Gila River Indian 
Community.  Bella Estrella is requesting $50,000 from the Gila River Indian Community for supplies to teach 
transferable life skills to adolescents and their caregivers. Bella Estrella’s support letter request is attached.  The Gila 
River Indian Community submittal deadline for grant applications is April 1, 2024.   

 

 

 

5



6



 

 

Summer Leadership Development Program Proposal 

 

Description:  

The Town of Guadalupe’s Community Action Program (CAP) will be hosting a summer youth 
leadership development program to target Guadalupe high school students who are interested in 
civic engagement. This program is designed to help high school students identify challenges in 
their community and help equip them with the tools necessary to make effective change. During 
this weeklong program participants will have the opportunity to engage with Town staff to learn 
the inner workings of municipal government, learn from community experts, and develop a 
presentation on their own public policy topics of interest.  

Program Components: 

 Public Policy Presentations 
 Day of Service 
 Guest speakers who work in Public Service  

Target Audience:  

The target audience for this program would be a maximum of 12 Guadalupe High School students. 
Students will be split into 4 groups of 3 and tasked with identifying a public policy issue or 
challenge in their community that they want to come up with effective solutions for. Students will 
be recruited from the various Tempe Union High School District and the surrounding schools 
where Guadalupe Freshmen – Seniors attend.  

*Students will apply and potentially be interviewed for this program depending on the number of 
applicants.  

Program Dates: 

June 3rd – June 7th (2nd week of summer break)  

Program Agenda: 

Day 1: Introduction and issue selection 

 Welcome and program overview. 
 Discuss the importance of leadership in addressing community issues. 
 Introduce the concept of public policy and its impact on communities. (Pastor Center ASU) 
 Brainstorm potential public policy issues affecting the community. 
 Students select an issue they are passionate about and form teams.  
 Meet & Greet: Mayor & Council / Town Manager  

Day 2: Day of Service/ Research and Analysis 

 Participate in potential service project (Food Bank, Park Clean-up, etc.)  
 Provide resources and guidance on conducting research related to the chosen issue (e.g. 

statistics, case studies, expert opinions) 
 Facilitate discussions on the root causes and stakeholders involved in the issue. 
 Encourage critical thinking and analysis of potential solutions.  

7



 

 

 Teams gather information and data to inform their presentations.  
 Potentially have guest speakers from the AZ House of Representatives (Lorena Austin & 

Cesar Aguilar, Marcelino Quinonez) 

Day 3: Strategy Development  

 Introduce strategic planning concepts and frameworks. 
 Help teams identify goals, objectives, and action steps to address the chosen issue.  
 Provide feedback and support as teams refine their approaches (Bring in experts to 

provide feedback) 
 Potentially have guest speakers from the AZ House of Representatives (Lorena Austin & 

Cesar Aguilar, Marcelino Quinonez) 

Day 4: Presentation Preparation 

 Discuss effective presentation skills, including organization, storytelling, and visual aids. 
 Assist teams in structuring their presentations (e.g. introduction, problem analysis, 

proposed solutions, implementation plan)  
 Conduct practice presentations and provide constructive feedback. 
 Teams finalize their presentations and prepare visual materials. 

Day 5: Presentation Day 

 Teams present findings and proposals to peers, instructors, and community members. 
High school students will be encouraged to invite family, friends, and loved ones to attend 
presentation day.  

 Encourage audience engagement through Q&A sessions. 
 Facilitate constructive feedback and discussion following each presentation. 
 Celebrate achievement and acknowledge the impact of student-led initiatives.  

Post-Program: 

 Gather feedback from students to assess the program’s effectiveness and identify areas 
for improvement.  

 Encourage students to implement their proposals in the community with support from the 
CAP office.  

 Provide opportunities for reflection and ongoing earning through follow-up sessions or 
mentorship.  

 Evaluate Summer Leadership Program for future participants. 

Things to consider:  

 Location for sessions to be held (Potentially Museum Room)  
 Session times (8 AM – 12 PM or 9 AM – 3 PM) 
 Food for participants if the program is running throughout the day.  
 Where can presentations be held (Potentially MPR)  
 Invite guest speakers.  
 Technology (Computers for participants, device for presentations, projector).  
 Potential streaming of program on FB  

8



 

 

 

Agenda 

Day 1: Welcome 

Time: Topic: Presenter: 

8:00 AM – 8:30 AM Check- In / Registration  

8:30 AM – 9:00 AM  Welcome  
 Ice-breakers 
 Program Overview: Provide an overview of the 

week-long program, its objectives, and 
expected outcomes. 

Martin 

9:00 AM – 10:00 
AM 

 Intro to Public Policy/ Advocacy Pastor Center 
(TBD) 

10:00 AM – 11:00 
AM 

 Students are arranged into policy teams. 
 Brainstorming Session. 
 Policy Teams will be selected.  

Martin 

11:00 AM – 12:00 
PM 

 Meet & Greet with Council  
 Presentation – How does Municipal 

Government Work?  

Mayor + Council, 
& Town Manager 

12:00 PM  Conclude for the day  

 

Day 2: Day of Service 

Time: Topic: Presenter:  

6:00 AM – 9:00 AM Assist with Weekly Food Distribution CAP 

9:00 AM – 9:30 AM Break  

9:30 AM – 10:00 
AM 

 Food Distribution Reflection 
 Questions regarding projects 

Martin 

10:00 AM – 11:30 
AM 

 Research topics: identify stakeholders, look 
up what other cities do to combat issue, look 
up potential solutions, look up root causes 

Policy Groups 

11:30 AM – 12:00 
PM 

 Meet & greet with Armando – Why he got 
involved in Public Service.  

 Conclude after presentation 

Armando 
Montero – 
President 
TUHSD 
Governing 
Board 

12:00 PM Conclude for the day.   

 

Day 3:  

Time: Topic: Presenter:  

8:00 AM – 8:30 AM Reflect on previous day's activities and takeaways 
from guest speaker.  

Martin 

8:30 AM – 9:30 AM What/Who does it take to run a Town/City? TOG Staff 

9



9:30 AM – 11:00 AM  Continue Research
 Identify Goals, objectives, action items.
 Outline presentations.
 Feedback Session

Policy Groups 

11:00 AM – 12:00 
PM 

 Meet with AZ State Representatives
 Get feedback from AZ Reps on

presentations.

TBD: 
Cesar Aguilar 
D26 
Lorena Austin 
D9 
Marcelino 
Quiñonez D11 

12:00 PM Conclude for Day 

Day 4: Presentation Preparation 

Time: Topic: Presenter: 

8:00 AM – 8:30 AM Reflect on AZ State Representatives, what were 
some takeaways, etc.  

Martin 

8:30 AM – 10:00 AM Construct presentation Policy Groups 

10:00 AM – 11:00 
AM 

 Practice Presentations
 Group Feedback

Policy Groups 

11:00 AM – 12:00 
PM 

Guest Speaker: TBD TBD 

12:00 PM Conclude for the day. 

Day 5: Presentation Day/ Luncheon 

8:00 AM – 10:00 AM Finalize Presentations Policy Groups 

10:00 AM – 10:30 
AM 

 Program Debrief
 Student Evaluations

Martin 

10:30 AM – 11:30 
PM 

 Students Prep for Presentations
 Staff sets-up for Luncheon.

Policy Groups 

11:30 PM – 1:00 PM  Luncheon
 Student Presentation
 Certificate Recognition

1:00 PM Program Concludes 

10



2024
12% Revenue Sharing / 
Gaming Grant Requests 

2024 Total Requested Amount:  $1,186,000
16 request
5 Entities:  
• Ak-Chin Indian Community 
• Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation
• Gila River Indian Community
• Pascua Yaqui Tribe*
• Tohono O’odham Nation 

Town Council Meeting
March 26, 2024 

11



Proposed 2024 Revenue Sharing / 
Gaming Grant Requests 

Town Council Meeting
March 26, 2024 

Ak-Chin 2024 Requests
Due: July 7

$85,000 FD FD Vehicle Shade Structure
$95,000 FD Command/Community Service Vehicle
$30,000 Events Cultural Event Programming

$210,000 total

Fort McDowell 2024 Requests
Due: May 1

$72,000 FD Firefighter Replacement Turnout Gear 
$45,000 PW Maintenance Yard Warehouse/Restroom/Tool Shed 
$70,000 PW 2- Dump trucks 

$187,000 total

Gila River 2024 Requests
Due: April 1 

$85,000 PW Maintenance Yard Vehicle Shade Structure
$62,000 SC Entry Patio Remodel
$60,000 CAP Work Force Development - PT Position 2 yr

$207,000 total

12



Proposed 2024 Revenue Sharing / 
Gaming Grant Requests 

Town Council Meeting
March 26, 2024 

Pascua Yaqui Tribe 2024 Requests 
Due: Sept. 30 / Feb. 28

$120,000 FD Fire Station Truck Bay Renovations
$225,000 Parks Biehn Park Renovations (Restrooms, Playground, Ball Field)

$54,000 PS Public Safety for Cultural Events
$25,000 Cemetery Flagpole Display & Ramada

$424,000 total

Tohono O'odham 2024 Requests 
Due: June 9

$25,000 PS Event Utility Vehicle
$88,000 SC Replacement Kitchen Equipment / Appliances
$45,000 CAP Family Utility Assistance

$158,000 total

$1,186,000 TOTAL 2024 Requests

13



Town Council Meeting
March 26, 2024 

Proposed 2024 Revenue Sharing / 
Gaming Grant Requests 

14



Proposed 2024 Revenue Sharing Grant Requests 

6-year: 2018 – 2023:  grants awards = $1,359,500
2018:

 Senior Center Roof repairs: $80K
 CAP Family Assistance Resources: $80K,
 Public Safety Event Services: $37K,
 Public Works Replacement Utility Trucks: $15K,
 Fire Truck payment: $62.5K.

2019:

 Firefighter Turnout Gear: $63K,
 Community Economic Assistance Programs: $70K,
 Cultural Heritage Events Programming: $31K.
 Public Safety Event Services: $55K.

2020:

 Firefighter Active Shooter Training & Equipment: $70K,
 CAP Family Assistance Resources: $25K,
 Public Safety Event Services: $25K.

2021:

 Firefighter SCBA Protective Equipment: $100K,
 CAP Family Rental and Utility Assistance Resources: $60K,
 Public Safety Event Services: $55K,
 Senior Center Patio and Craft Room Renovation: $80K.

2022:

 Firefighter Portable Radio Replacement: $72K
 CAP Program and Services Assistant: $62K
 Public Safety Event Services: $54K.

2023:

 Firefighter Cardiac Care AED’s: $75K
 Senior Center Elder Activity Programming: $45K
 CAP Family Utility Assistance Resources: $25K,
 Public Safety Event Services: $54K.

Town Council Meeting March 26, 2024 

15



2024 Revenue Sharing / 
Gaming Grant 6-year Summary 

by Town department  

Town Council Meeting
March 26, 2024 

GRANT AWARDS 6 Year 6 year 
year 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 TOTAL % Req

Business Dev. $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 0%
CAP $80.0 $70.0 $25.0 $60.0 $62.0 $25.0 $322.0 24%
Public Safety $0.0 $90.0 $25.0 $55.0 $54.0 $54.0 $278.0 20%
Fire Dept. $62.5 $63.0 $70.0 $100.0 $72.0 $75.0 $442.5 33%
Public Works $15.0 $0.0 $0.0 $60.0 $0.0 $0.0 $75.0 6%
Senior Center $80.0 $0.0 $0.0 $80.0 $0.0 $45.0 $205.0 15%
Events $37.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $37.0 3%

Total $274.5 $223.0 $120.0 $355.0 $188.0 $199.0 $1,359.5 100%

APPROVED $274.5 $223.0 $120.0 $355.0 $188.0 $199.0 $1,359.5 25%
REQUEST $752.5 $1,485.1 $285.0 $811.0 $1,017.0 $1,058.0 $5,408.6

16



Town Council Meeting
March 26, 2024 

2024 Revenue Sharing / 
Gaming Grant 6-year Summary 

by award   

17



2024
12% Revenue Sharing / 
Gaming Grant Requests 

2024 Total Requested Amount:  $1,186,000
16 request
5 Entities:  
• Ak-Chin Indian Community
• Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation
• Gila River Indian Community
• Pascua Yaqui Tribe*
• Tohono O’odham Nation

Town Council Meeting
March 26, 2024 

18



RESOLUTION NO. R2024.06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING 
THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE AK-CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY TO 
FUND FIRE DEPARTMENT VEHICLE SHADE STRUCTURE, FIRE DEPARTMENT 
COMMAND/COMMUNITY SERVICE VEHICLE, AND CULTURAL EVENT PROGRAMMING. 

 
  WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted into law the Indian Gaming Regulatory act, Public Law 
100-497, 25 U.S.C. §2701-2721 and 18 U.S.C. §1166-1168 (the "Act") which requires a tribal state compact in order to 
conduct Class 111 gaming activities on the Indian lands of a tribe; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Ak-Chin Indian Community has entered into a gaming contract with the State of Arizona and said 
compact requires that the Ak-Chin Indian Community contributes to Arizona communities for governmental services that 
benefit the general public such as public safety, mitigation of the impacts of gaming, etc., or promotion of commerce and 
economic development; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, has a substantial population of Native Americans and other minorities 
and is in need of financial assistance to construct a shade structure to protect Fire Department vehicles, purchase a 
Command/Community Service vehicle, and produce cultural heritage events for the community; and  

 

  WHEREAS, the following needs have been identified: 
 

Fire Department vehicle shade structure:  $85,000 

Fire Department command/community service vehicle: $95,000 

Cultural heritage events programming: $30,000 
 

  WHEREAS, these needs have been identified as most pressing; and, that any grant monies received from the Ak-Chin 
Indian Community would be restricted to these needs; and 
 

  WHEREAS, it would be appropriate for Town staff to submit a grant funding request to the Ak-Chin Indian Community 
in the sum of $210,000 for the aforementioned needs. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 

Town staff is directed to submit an application for grant funds in the sum of $210,000 to the Ak-Chin Indian Community; 
and, that said funds shall be restricted to the needs set forth in this resolution. 

 

PASSED by the Town Council of the Town Guadalupe, Arizona, this 26th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
 
 __________________________ 

 Valerie Molina 
 Mayor 

 
 
 

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 
 
  
_________________________ _________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga David E. Ledyard, Esq. 
Town Manager/Clerk FAITH, LEDYARD & FAITH, PLC 
 Town Attorneys 

 

19



RESOLUTION NO. R2024.07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING 
AN APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE FORT MCDOWELL YAVAPAI NATION FOR 
FIREFIGHTER REPLACEMENT TURNOUT GEAR, PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE YARD 
WAREHOUSE/RESTROOM/TOOL SHED RENOVATION, AND PUBLIC WORKS DUMP TRUCKS. 
 

  WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted into law the Indian Gaming Regulatory act, Public Law 
100-497, 25 U.S.C. §2701-2721 and 18 U.S.C. §1166-1168 (the "Act") which requires a tribal state compact in order to 
conduct Class 111 gaming activities on the Indian lands of a tribe; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation has entered into a gaming contract with the State of Arizona and said 
compact requires that the Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation contributes to Arizona communities for governmental services that 
benefit the general public such as public safety, mitigation of the impacts of gaming, etc., or promotion of commerce and 
economic development; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, has a substantial population of Native Americans and other minorities 
and is in need of financial assistance to replace Firefighter turnout gear, renovate the Public Works maintenance yard 
warehouse/restroom/tool shed, and purchase two dump trucks for Public Works; and 
 

  WHEREAS, the following needs have been identified: 
 

    Firefighter replacement turnout gear:      $72,000 

    Public Works maintenance yard warehouse/restroom/tool shed renovations:  $45,000 

    Public Works dump trucks (two)       $70,000 

 

  WHEREAS, these needs have been identified as most pressing; and, that any grant monies received from the Fort 
McDowell Yavapai Nation would be restricted to these needs; and 
 

  WHEREAS, it would be appropriate for Town staff to submit a grant funding request to the Fort McDowell Yavapai 
Nation in the sum of $187,000 for the aforementioned needs. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Town staff is directed to submit an application for grant funds in the sum of $187,000 to the Fort McDowell Yavapai 
Nation; and, that said funds shall be restricted to the needs set forth in this resolution. 
 

PASSED by the Town Council of the Town Guadalupe, Arizona, this 26th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
 __________________________ 

 Valerie Molina 
 Mayor 

 
 
 

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 
 
  
_________________________ _________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga David E. Ledyard, Esq. 
Town Manager/Clerk FAITH, LEDYARD & FAITH, PLC 
 Town Attorneys 
 

 

20



RESOLUTION NO. R2024.08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING 
AN APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY TO FUND COMMUNITY 
ACTION PROGRAM WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM, PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE 
YARD VEHICLE SHADE STRUCTURE, AND SENIOR CENTER ENTRYWAY/PATIO REMODEL. 
 

  WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted into law the Indian Gaming Regulatory act, Public Law 
100-497, 25 U.S.C. §2701-2721 and 18 U.S.C. §1166-1168 (the "Act") which requires a tribal state compact in order to 
conduct Class 111 gaming activities on the Indian lands of a tribe; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community has entered into a gaming contract with the State of Arizona and said 
compact requires that the Gila River Indian Community contributes to Arizona communities for governmental services that 
benefit the general public such as public safety, mitigation of the impacts of gaming, etc., or promotion of commerce and 
economic development; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, has a substantial population of Native Americans and other minorities 
and is in need of assistance to fund development and implementation of a Community Action Program (CAP) Workforce 
Development Program, construction of a shade structure to protect Public Works vehicles, and remodel of the Senior Center 
entryway and patio; and  
 

  WHEREAS, the following needs have been identified: 
 

Community Action Program Workforce Development Program: $60,000 

Public Works Maintenance Yard Vehicle Shade Structure: $85,000 

Senior Center Entryway/Patio:  $62,000 
 

  WHEREAS, these needs have been identified as most pressing; and, that any grant monies received from the Gila 
River Indian Community would be restricted to these needs; and 
 

  WHEREAS, it would be appropriate for Town staff to submit a grant funding request to the Gila River Indian Community 
in the sum of $207,000 for the aforementioned needs. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Town staff is directed to submit an application for grant funds in the sum of $207,000 to the Gila River Indian Community; 
and, that said funds shall be restricted to the needs set forth in this resolution. 
 

PASSED by the Town Council of the Town Guadalupe, Arizona, this 26th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
 __________________________ 

 Valerie Molina 
 Mayor 

 
 
 

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 
 
  
_________________________ _________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga David E. Ledyard, Esq. 
Town Manager/Clerk FAITH, LEDYARD & FAITH, PLC 
 Town Attorneys 
 

 

21



RESOLUTION NO. R2024.09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING 
THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE PASCUA YAQUI TRIBE TO FUND 
THE RENOVATION OF THE GUADALUPE FIRE STATION TRUCK BAY FLOORING, DOORS, AND 
ROOF; RENOVATION OF BIEHN PARK RESTROOMS, BALLPARK, AND PLAYGROUND; 
INSTALLATION OF FLAGPOLES, RENOVATION OF A RAMADA, AND REPLACEMENT OF GATES AT 
THE GUADALUPE CEMETERY; AND, PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES FOR CULTURAL AND COMMUNITY 
EVENTS. 

 

  WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted into law the Indian Gaming Regulatory act, Public Law 100-
497, 25 U.S.C. §2701-2721 and 18 U.S.C. §1166-1168 (the "Act") which requires a tribal state compact in order to conduct 
Class 111 gaming activities on the Indian lands of a tribe; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Pascua Yaqui Tribe has entered into a gaming contract with the State of Arizona and said compact 
requires that the Pascua Yaqui Tribe contributes to Arizona communities for governmental services that benefit the general 
public such as public safety, mitigation of the impacts of gaming, etc., or promotion of commerce and economic 
development; and 
 

  WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, has a substantial population of Native Americans and other minorities 
and is in need of funding assistance to fund renovating the Fire Station truck bay, flooring, doors and roof; renovating Biehn 
Park restrooms, ballpark, and playground; installing flagpoles, replacing entry/security gates,and renovating the ramada at 
the Guadalupe Cemetery; and providing public safety services for cultural heritage and community events; and 
 

  WHEREAS, the following needs have been identified: 

Fire Station renovation of truck bays flooring, doors, and roof:   $120,000 

Biehn Park restroom, ballpark, and playground renovations:  $225,000 

Installation of flagpoles, renovation of ramada, and replacement of gates at Cemetery:  $25,000 

Public Safety Services – Cultural and Community Events:  $54,000 
 

  WHEREAS, these needs have been identified as most pressing; and, that any grant monies received from the Pascua 
Yaqui Tribe would be restricted to these needs; and 
 

  WHEREAS, it would be appropriate for Town staff to submit a grant funding request to the Pascua Yaqui Tribe in the 
sum of $424,000 for the aforementioned needs. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Town staff is directed to submit an application for grant funds in the sum of $424,000 to the Pascua Yaqui Tribe; and, 
that said funds shall be restricted to the needs set forth in this resolution. 
 

PASSED by the Town Council of the Town Guadalupe, Arizona, this 26th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
 

 __________________________ 
 Valerie Molina 
 Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 
  
 
 
_________________________ _________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga David E. Ledyard, Esq. 
Town Manager/Clerk FAITH, LEDYARD & FAITH, PLC 
 Town Attorneys 

22



RESOLUTION NO. R2024.10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, MARICOPA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE TOHONO 
O’ODHAM NATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR THE PURCHASE OF AN EVENT UTILITY 
VEHICLE, REPLACEMENT KITCHEN EQUIPMENT AND APPLIANCES FOR THE SENIOR CENTER AND 
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM FAMILY UTILTY ASSISTANCE.  

  WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has enacted into law the Indian Gaming Regulatory act, Public Law 100-
497, 25 U.S.C. §2701-2721 and 18 U.S.C. §1166-1168 (the "Act") which requires a tribal state compact in order to conduct 
Class 111 gaming activities on the Indian lands of a tribe; and 

  WHEREAS, the Tohono O’odham Nation has entered into a gaming contract with the State of Arizona and said compact 
requires that the Tohono O’odham Nation contributes to Arizona communities for governmental services that benefit the 
general public such as public safety, mitigation of the impacts of gaming, etc., or promotion of commerce and economic 
development; and 

  WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, has a substantial population of Native Americans and other minorities 
and is in need of financial assistance to purchase a public safety utility vehicle for community events, replacing Senior 
Center kitchen equipment and appliances, and providing resident utility assistance through the Community Action Program; 
and 

WHEREAS, the following need has been identified: 

Event Utility Vehicle: $25,000 

Senior Center Replacement Kitchen Equipment & Appliances: $88,000 

Community Action Program Family Utility Assistance: $45,000 

  WHEREAS, these needs have been identified as most pressing; and, that any grant monies received from the Tohono 
O’odham Nation would be restricted to these needs; and 

  WHEREAS, it would be appropriate for the Town staff to submit a grant funding request to the Tohono O’odham Nation 
in the sum of $158,000 for the aforementioned needs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Town staff is directed to submit an application for grant funds in the sum of $158,000 to the Tohono O’odham Nation; 
and, that said funds shall be restricted to the needs set forth in this resolution. 

PASSED by the Town Council of the Town Guadalupe, Arizona, this 26th day of March, 2024. 

__________________________ 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 

_________________________ _________________________ 

Jeff Kulaga David E. Ledyard, Esq. 
Town Manager/Clerk FAITH, LEDYARD & FAITH, PLC 

Town Attorneys 

23



Town of Guadalupe
TRIBAL GAMING REVENUE SHARING – SUPPORT LETTER REQUEST FORM 

Each year, Tribes, Communities and Nations (entities) accept grant applications from Arizona cities, 
towns, counties, public schools, and nonprofit organizations. Although each Tribal entity has a different application process and 
due date, all entities require support from a local government as outlined in the Tribal Gaming Compact. For the Town of 
Guadalupe, this means a letter of support from the Guadalupe Town Council.  Nonprofit organizations applying for Tribal 
gaming revenue sharing may request letters of support from the Town of Guadalupe as outlined below.  

CRITERIA: 

• Organization must have a certified 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status from the Internal Revenue Service.
• Organization must meet the criteria for the specific grant for which they are applying.
• Organization must demonstrate how the program will benefit the Guadalupe community.

DEADLINE: 

Requests for letters of support must be received by the Town of Guadalupe no less than 30 days prior to the grant application 

submittal deadline. For example: 

TRIBAL ENTITY
GRANT APPLICATION 
DEADLINE* 

DEADLINE TO SUBMIT REQUEST 
FOR LETTER OF SUPPORT* 

SELECT TRIBAL
√ 

Ak-Chin Indian Community July 7 June 7 
Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation May 1 March 7 
Gila River Indian Community April 1 March 3 
Pascua Yaqui Tribe Feb 29 / Sept. 30 Jan 29/ Aug 31 
Tohono O’odham Nation June 9 May 9 
*Exact dates may vary by year.

All requests will be considered by the Guadalupe Town Council. If approved, a letter of support will be provided at least seven 
days prior to the grant application deadline. 

Please complete the information below and submit no less than 30 days prior to the grant application deadline.  Submit via email 
to: clerk@guadalupeaz.org. 

Organization:______________________________________________  Date:_________________ 

Contact:_______________________________  Phone:______________ Email:_______________________ 

Name of program for which the grant funds will be used:________________________________________________ 

Briefly describe what the grant funds will be used for:___________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

How will the program benefit the Guadalupe community?________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

What specific target audience(s) will benefit from the program (e.g., at-risk youth, elders, low-income)? ___________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ENTITY

Rev. 02/01/2024

Bella  Estrella

Anita Cota Soto 480-309-5720 anitablessed.123@gmail.com

Supporting Sustainability

Developing life skills is key to developing sustainability. The 

adolescents and caregivers will learn to help themselves and in turn, help others; offering a hand up versus a handout.

The funds will be used to purchase supplies to teach transferable 

life skills to adolescents and their caregivers.

adolescents 

ages 8-18 and their caregivers

24

mailto:clerk@guadalupeaz.org


 

  

March 26, 2024 
 
 
The Honorable Gary Mix, Community Treasurer and Tribal Council Members Office of the Gila River Indian 
Community 
P.O. Box 97 
Sacaton, AZ 85147 
 
Dear Treasurer Mix and Tribal Council Members, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to lend our support to Bella Estrella for their request of Gila River Indian Community 
Revenue Sharing Funds.  Bella Estrella is seeking $50,000.00 in revenue sharing funds.  If granted, funding 
would be used for supplies to teach transferable life skills to adolescents and their caregivers.     
 
The Town of Guadalupe supports Bella Estrella, their services, and programs.   
 
Thank you for considering this request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

    
_________________________                                       
Valerie Molina  
Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

25



March 26, 2024 

The Honorable Gary Mix, Community Treasurer and Tribal Council Members Office of the Gila River Indian 
Community 
P.O. Box 97 
Sacaton, AZ 85147 

Dear Treasurer Mix and Tribal Council Members, 

On behalf of Bella Estrella, we are submitting this letter of support for their application for Gila River Indian 
Community Revenue Sharing Funds. They have applied for $50,000.00 for supplies to teach transferable life 
skills to adolescents and their caregivers.     

The Town of Guadalupe administration is happy to support Bella Estrella’s application for $50,000.00 in Gila 
River Indian Community Revenue Sharing Funds.  Should you have any questions or seek clarification, please 
contact me at jkulaga@guadalupeaz.org or by calling 480-505-5376. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

_________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga 
Town Manager / Clerk 

26


	03 26 24 RCM Agenda.pdf
	Informational Cover Memo.pdf
	F1. Week of the Young Child Proclamation.pdf
	G1. Summer Leadership Program Proposal.pdf
	G2. Proposed 2024 Revenue Sharing Gaming Grant Submittals 3_26_2024.pdf
	G3. R2024.06 Ak-Chin Gaming Grant.pdf
	G4. R2024.07 Fort McDowell Gaming Grant.pdf
	G5. R2024.08 Gila River Gaming Grant.pdf
	G6. R2024.09 Pascua Yaqui Tribe Gaming Grant.pdf
	G7. Tohono O'odham Nation Gaming Grant.pdf
	G8. a. Gaming Grants Support Letter Request Form _ Bella Estrella.pdf



